Zeitschrift: Helvetia: magazine of the Swiss Society of New Zealand

Herausgeber: Swiss Society of New Zealand

Band: 19 (1956)

Heft: [2]

Vorwort: Departure of Mr. Oesch

Autor: [s.n.]

Nutzungsbedingungen

Die ETH-Bibliothek ist die Anbieterin der digitalisierten Zeitschriften. Sie besitzt keine Urheberrechte an den Zeitschriften und ist nicht verantwortlich für deren Inhalte. Die Rechte liegen in der Regel bei den Herausgebern beziehungsweise den externen Rechteinhabern. Siehe Rechtliche Hinweise.

Conditions d'utilisation

L'ETH Library est le fournisseur des revues numérisées. Elle ne détient aucun droit d'auteur sur les revues et n'est pas responsable de leur contenu. En règle générale, les droits sont détenus par les éditeurs ou les détenteurs de droits externes. <u>Voir Informations légales.</u>

Terms of use

The ETH Library is the provider of the digitised journals. It does not own any copyrights to the journals and is not responsible for their content. The rights usually lie with the publishers or the external rights holders. See Legal notice.

Download PDF: 17.05.2025

ETH-Bibliothek Zürich, E-Periodica, https://www.e-periodica.ch

HELVETIA

MONTHLY **PUBLICATION** OF THE



SWISS BENEVOLENT SOCIETY IN NEW ZEALAND (INC.)

GROUP NEW ZEALAND OF THE NEW HELVETIC SOCIETY

19th YEAR. FEBRUARY, 1956.

AUCKLAND.

Departure of Mr. Oesch

Mr. Oscar Oesch, Chancellor of the Consulate, will be leaving New Zealand towards the end of March to take up his new appointment with the Consulate of Switzerland in Cincinnati, U.S.A.

Mr. Walter Sollberger, who has already arrived, is succeeding Mr. Oesch as Chancellor of the Consulate.

THE 100th ANNIVERSARY OF THE FEDERAL INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY

The Federal Technical University of Zurich (Federal Institute of Technology), the rector of which is Professor Karl Schmid, has recently celebrated the hundredth anniversary of its foundation, and scholars from all over the world have united in paying their tribute to an institution which has contributed not only to the economic advance of Switzerland but also to research far beyond her frontiers.

The Government and municipal authorities gave a reception in honour of the many guests whom the university had invited, amongst them were present former Federal Councillors, scientists, industrialists, artists, politicians, high-rank-

ing officers, technicians, etc., etc.

Amongst the many speakers was Monsieur Max Petitpierre, President of the Swiss Confederation.

The following article by Dr. h.c. E. Speiser, President of the Swiss Association of Machinery Manufacturers, has appeared in the latest issue of "Swiss Technics":

The Federal Constitution, adopted in 1848 by the people and their representatives, contained in Article 22 this provision: "The Confederation is authorised to establish a University and a Polytechnic." The revised Constitution of 1874, Article 27, speaks of the already "existing" Polytechnic.

In actual fact the young Confederation, with the enthusiasm that characterised it at that time, had immediately exercised its right in respect of the Polytechnic and as early at 1855 all the preparatory work was completed and the

Institute could open its doors to the benefit of Swiss youth athirst for knowledge and to the advantage of the entire Swiss economy. The time of the Institute's foundation was well chosen. The breaking down of all the guild barriers in the first half of the last century, the principle of commercial and industrial freedom which corresponded to the liberal spirit prevailing at that time and which meant, simply, the right of the individual to choose his profession and place of work as he thought fit, had released unprecedented energies. The triumph march of the machine, driven first by steam and later by electric power as well, was beginning, and the whole life, both of the individual and of the community, was transformed. Chemistry and pharmaceutics received a new impetus and scientific research penetrated into many another field dominated until then by custom and traditional methods of work.

There thus arose a constantly growing need for technically trained youths. The young Federal Institute could only satisfy this need by making tremendous efforts and by becoming ever larger.

A few figures will serve to illustrate this. The Institute began its work in the autumn of 1855 with a teaching staff of 45 (professors, staff lecturers and outside lecturers). Today it has a staff of 282, to which must be added another 237 assistants. Whereas the number of students a hundred years ago was only 68, it has grown almost uninterruptedly to the present normal figure of between 2800 and 3000 matriculated students; in addition, there are a very great number of non-matriculated students. one-sixth of the students as a rule come from abroad—a proof of the high esteem enjoyed by the Institute which is now able to award some 450 diplomas each year. Owing to special circumstances, such as studies being interrupted by frequent military service and an exceptionally large influx of students from abroad, numbers of over 4000 were attained during and immediately after the war, but this was not regarded as an ideal state of affairs.